
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

  BACACG 
MEETING MINUTES 

Location: BAC Head Office, 11 The Circuit, Brisbane Airport, 4008 QLD  

Date:  Tuesday 4th March 2025  

Chair Nigel Chamier AM 

Attendees  Nigel Chamier (Chair) 

Karilyn Beiers (Community representative for Federal Seat of Bowman) 

Sian Balogh (BAC) 

Portia Allison (BAC) 

Tim Boyle (BAC) 

Michael Jarvis (BAC) 

Daniel Yelf (BAC) 

Attendees 
(online) 

Tim Roskams (Community representative for Federal Seat of Brisbane) 

Professor Laurie Buys (Community representative for Federal Seat of Moreton) 

Caroline Hauxwell (Community representative for Federal Seat of Ryan) 

Matt Loveday (Community representative for Federal Seat of Bonner) 

Joshua Kindred (Community representative for Federal Seat of Petrie) 

Dr. Sean Foley (Community representative for Federal Seat of Griffith) 

Daniel Ryan (Community representative for Federal Seat of Lilley) 

Chris Kang (Community representative for State Seat of Clayfield) 

Marion Lawie (Airservices Australia) 

Donna Marshall (Airservices Australia) 

Cassandra Sun (BCC) 

 

Guest: 

Katy Hannouch (Western Sydney Airport) 

Matthew Martyn-Jones (Western Sydney Airport) 

Apologies  Michael Hawkins (Community representative for Federal Seat of Dickson) 

Andrew Marshall (QLD, SA and NT Airports, Department of Infrastructure) 

Melissa Griffiths (QLD, SA and NT Airports, Department of Infrastructure) 

Brendan Mead (Qantas) 

Scott Mitchell (Virgin Australia) 

Alex Dallwitz (Aircraft Noise Ombudsman) 

Thomas Stacey (BCC) 

Neil Bain (Airservices Australia) 

Siobhan Cornett (Airservices Australia) 

Alex Tikoft (Airservices Australia) 

Andy Bauer (Virgin Australia) 

Rachel Crowley (BAC) 

Henry Tuttiett (BAC) 

 

  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

AGENDA ITEMS 

10 am 

Chair: 

Welcome.  

 Acknowledgement of Country. 

Confirmed the minutes for the last BACACG meeting on the 26 November 2024. 

Chair update: 

• Acknowledge meeting was held primarily online due to potential impacts of ex-Tropical Cyclone 

Alfred.  

• Welcomed representatives from Western Sydney Airport as guests, to observe and provide a short 

presentation.  

•  Advised that the Department of Infrastructure has declined to attend future CACG meetings across 

relevant airports unless explicitly required. The Chair advised that on behalf of the BACACG group, 

a letter will be sent to Minister Catherine King expressing the group’s disappointing with the 

decision and requesting the Department reconsider the decision.  

BACACG Secretary Update: 

Sian Balogh (SB), Community Engagement Manager at BAC and BACACG Secretary, provided an 
update of incoming and outgoing correspondence to the BACACG email inbox and incoming aircraft noise 
feedback. SB advised that there are outstanding actions relating to a request for raw noise monitoring 
data from Airservices Australia and a response from the Department of Infrastructure in relation to 
questions raised by the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane.  

Tim Boyle (TB), Head of Airspace Management at BAC, provided information relating to actions raised at 
the previous meeting including: 

• Question raised by the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane in relation to 

which airlines are taking a voluntary higher tailwind. TB advised that the information is difficult to 

ascertain as data identifying voluntary decisions is not stored. TB provided graph outlining 

instances when the wind speed has exceeded 5 knots and aircraft have departed over the bay. 

See Appendix 1.  The Community Representative advised purpose of the question was to 

demonstrate whether the voluntary option decreased aircraft flying over residents.  

• Question raised by the Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Moreton regarding 

whether BAC could communicate a request to airlines to keel aircraft landing gear up for as long as 

possible before landing. TB advised that BAC spoke with airline partners and received information 

indicating that due to factors including the weight of the aircraft, weather, type of approach, and Air 

Traffic Control requirements, it is unlikely that any material change is possible. See Appendix 1.  

Western Sydney Airport Update  

Katy Hannouch (KH), Western Sydney Airport, provided a general update on the development and future 

operations of the Western Sydney Airport including projected passenger numbers, more jobs for 

residents, and a timeline for opening in 2026. 

The Chair invites the Western Sydney Airport representatives to observe the remainder of the meeting.  

Transport Planning Update | BAC 

Michael Jarvis (MJ), Head of Airport Planning at BAC, provided an update on BAC’s transport connectivity 

strategy, highlighting key points: 

• Brisbane Airport isn’t significantly affected by traffic from the CBD due to it’s location and 

connection to the Airport Link Tunnel.  



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

• With significant growth of the Australian Trade Coast (which includes the Pinkenba Cruise Terminal 

and Port of Brisbane), BAC has collaborated with the Department of Transport and Main Roads 

and the Brisbane City Council to complete a review of the transport impacts and opportunities in 

and around the Brisbane Airport precinct.  

• Modelling indicates by 2040 road networks in and around the airport will become congested, and 

public transport will need to be a more reliable transport option. BAC is continuing to advocate for 

more public transport options.  

• Active Transport continues to be a popular and important transport alternative, with BAC’s Active 

Transport Strategy framing the work to be completed to increase connectivity in and around the 

precinct.  

• BAC continues to advocate for safety, resilience and capacity upgrade funding for Main Myrtle 

Town Road.  

• BAC is working with the Brisbane City Council to advocate for Brisbane Metro to expand services 

to Brisbane Airport.  

MJ advised BAC’s 2026 Master Plan will include information on Active Transport and general transport 

in and around the Brisbane Airport precinct. For more information, see Appendix 1.  

Questions: 

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner expressed that the information 

about transport was good but was disappointing to see that a large amount of money is being 

invested into transport rather than measures relating to aircraft noise mitigation. The 

Representative also expressed disappointment that the Department of Infrastructure was not in 

attendance.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane also expressed concern about 

funds not being directed to noise mitigation measures.  

Airservices Australia Update  

Marion Lawie (ML), Airservices Australia, provided an update on the Noise Complaint and Information 

Service (NCIS) and Noise Action Plan for Brisbane (NAP4B). ML advised that complaint data is available 

on the Aircraft in Your Neighbourhood webpage. ML advised that the number of individual complainants 

has dropped, but overall contacts have increased (complainants are making more submissions).  

ML advised that additional contacts are expect in response to ex-Tropical Cyclone Alfred and significant 

weather events can result in unusual movements.  

ML advised that, pending feedback from the Brisbane Airport Airspace Advisory Board (AAB) the NAP4B 

Program Update graphic will be shared on the Airservices Website (see Appendix 1).  

ML shared update on outstanding action relating to the request for raw data from Airservices Australia’s 

noise monitors. ML shared information on the metrics used to interpret noise data and the varying results, 

ML advised that the information will be shared with the intent to help educate the community on the types 

of metrics available to interpret noise data (see Appendix 1). ML also shared information on where to find 

completed reports on short term noise monitoring (see Appendix 1).  

ML responded to an action from a previous meeting raised by the Community Representative for the 

Federal Seat of Bonner, wherein data was requested demonstrating the number of pilots applying for 

exemption for SID procedures. ML advised that this data is not recorded.  

Questions:  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith questioned whether a new 

Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) would be completed to rectify the discrepancy between the 

one produced during the New Parallel Runway and the current aircraft movements. Donna 

Marshall (DM), Airservices Australia, advised that the EIS was not completed by Airservices 

Australia and was completed by BAC. The Representative queried what was being done to reduce 

noise impact since aircraft movements have doubled. DM advised that the NAP4B is an attempt to 

reduce impact of aircraft operations, however Airservices Australia cannot stop the movements. 

The Representative questioned how long before the NAP4B is put into action. DM advised that the 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

NAP4B started in 2023 and a number of actions have already been implemented, and the process 

is approximately half way complete.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane advised interest in a new 

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) to demonstrate current flight paths and proposed flight 

paths identified by TRAX. TB advised that updated noise forecasts will be included in the 2026 Master 

Plan. 

BAC Update | Community & Passengers 

Daniel Yelf (DY), Hub Development & Analytics Manager at BAC, provided an update on passenger and 

aircraft data. DY advised that operations have essentially returned to pre-COVID levels with both 

Domestic and International passenger numbers recovering. DY advised of growth/changes since the 

previous meeting:  

• Jetstar launched 3pw to Bangkok  

• Qantas launched 4pw to Manilla  

• Qantas growth for Singapore from 7pw to 9pw & Qantas growth for Wellington from 5pw to 7pw  

• Cathay Pacific growth for Hong Kong from 6pw to 10pw  

• China Eastern growth for Shanghai from 3pw to 7pw  

• China Southern growth for Guangzhou from 4pw to 5pw  

• Solomon Airlines launched 1pw to Auckland 

• Virgin to launch 7pw to Dohan from 19th June 2025 

• Cathay Pacific growth for Hong Kong to 12pw from 31st March 2025 

SB provided an update on Community Activities including:  

• Royal Flying Doctors Events held at Skygate Precinct 

• Lost Property Auction generated $90k and was donated to Courier Mail Children’s Fund to be 

distributed.  

• Donations made from the Giving Globes to Guide Dogs Queensland, Assistance Dogs Australia, 

Foodbank, and Jonathon Thurston Academy 

• Community Giving Fund closed at the end of Feb and received 190 applications 

SB advised that there was an increase in general feedback over the December and January period due 

to an increase in travellers and ongoing construction works.  

Questions:  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner questioned if any of the aircraft 

related to additional flights meet Chapter 14 standards under ICAO. TB advised to take the 

question on notice.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Lilley queried whether there a similar fund 

to the Community Giving Fund would be available for residents impacted by noise. SB advised that 

the Community Giving Fund is for non-for-profit organisation that have DGR status. 

Community Representative General Business and Discussion  

The Chair invites the Community Representatives to discuss any general business.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner 

• The Representative advised they are currently filling an interim role on the AAB as well as 

remaining on BACACG. The Representative shared disappointment in not seeing leadership from 

group members and the Chair. The Representative asked DM to provide update on the scope of 

work being developed by Airservices Australia. DM advised that the AAB has requested Airservices 

Australia to provide information on the metrics used to share noise impacts. DM advised that Think 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Research is the independent technical advisor working on the request and are available to the 

AAB. DM advised a brief has been developed by Airservices Australia to be shared with Think 

Research to work to identify any other metrics that could be used.  

• The Representative questioned whether the next round of community consultation will include any 

of the recommendations made by the Seante Inquiry. DM advised that the recommendations are 

with the Department to make the ultimate decision and Airservices Australia will be guided by those 

decisions.  

The Community Representative for the State Seat of Clayfield  

• The Representative thanked SB and BAC for sharing details for the Pinkenba Community 

Association (PCA) to receive a briefing from Psi Quantum prior to the development being open for 

public consultation. The Representative advised that the PCA has concerns about the increased 

traffic as a result of the development and impact to road networks. The Representative indicated 

there are drainage and road maintenance concerns that haven’t been rectified. The Chair invited 

Cassandra Sun (CS), Brisbane City Council), to respond. CS requested that information relating to 

road maintenance concerns be forwarded on to be raised at the Traffic and Transport Working 

Group.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Lilley 

• The Representative advised the Lilley Electorate Office has not received many queries regarding 

aircraft noise. The Representative advised the community will be interested in the Master Plan, 

particularly around traffic management and drainage.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Brisbane 

• The Representative questioned whether the next Master Plan would include new ANEF Contours 

with a map for residents to locate their home. TB advised that similar to previous Master Plans, the 

revised contours, in line with approval requirements, will be included with a map for residents to 

use. The Representative questioned when the consultation for the Master Plan will take place. TB 

advised it will start in either late July or early August 2025 and run for 60 business days.  

• The Representative questioned whether the Post Implementation Review (PIR) only reviewed 70db 

contours. DM advised that the PIR compared actual operations post runway opening with the 

forecast in the final flight path design in the EIA. The Representative stated that the PIR only 

reviewed a limited number of areas. DM advised could not provide answer confidently without 

reviewing the document but advised there was a table included in the review that compared areas 

that had comparative differences from the EIA.  

• The Representative queried how Airservices Australia developed its significance criteria when the 

EPBC Act does not have defined criterion. DM advised that the criteria was developed before she 

joined Airservices Australia but can generally advise that the criteria was developed in consultation 

with the Department of Environment at the time and with support of an external consultancy 

agency. DM advised that the purpose of the significance criteria is to provide guidelines for when 

Airservices Australia should refer matter to the Minister for Environment.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bowman  

• The Representative advised that they have a list of questions for Airservices Australia, see 

Appendix 2. 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Moreton 

• The Representative expressed disappointment with the success of the group since joining and 

advised that while the quality of the questions shared within the meeting has increased but not 

much change has happened. The Representative advised dissatisfaction with the response from 

airlines regarding the action item on landing gear, advising that the answer of ‘safety first’ doesn’t 

address community concerns.  

• The Representative asked the Chair if the group could identify three actions that the committee 

could have input on.  

• The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner expressed disappointment in the 

success of the group, advising that there are no deliverables for the community. The 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Representative requested action on the Emirates A380 flight arrival time (1:50am), identifying that 

the flight was called out in the Seante Inquiry as being a problem for the community. TB advised 

that, for clarity, the A380 flight meets the ICAO Chapter 14 noise standards. The Representative 

expressed that the flight should still be addressed.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Griffith  

• The Representative identified a report on Aircraft In Your Neighbourhood as not displaying the 

A380 flight as part of the report for Bulimba. DM advised for The Representative to share the report 

for Airservices Australia to review.  

• The Representative advised they have completed a report identifying the noise mitigation 

solutions/programs employed at Long City Airport (see Appendix 3). DM advised that London City 

Airport’s runway is half the length of Brisbane’s and has significantly lower aircraft movements and 

passenger numbers per year. DM advised they will review the report but Airservices Australia 

cannot make comment on health impacts as they are not health experts. DM advised that any 

health related matter should be referred to the Department. DM advised that as a part of the 

approval for Melbourne Airport’s Third Runway a health study will be commissioned.  

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Ryan  

• The Representative expressed significant disappointment with the lack of successful actions of the 

group and the lack of change for the community regarding aircraft noise. The Representative stated 

that a health study as not enough and action is needed. The Representative requested an apology 

from BAC regarding the impact of aircraft noise. The Chair advised request would be shared with 

BAC’s CEO.  

Close Meeting | Final Comments from Chair 

Meeting closed at 12:05pm.  

 

Next meeting to occur on 26th June 2025 - Action items below carried forward to next meeting. 

 

Action Items Owner(s) Deadline Status 

Noise monitor raw data:  AA is continuing discussions with the 
AAB on how to approach raw noise data, and an update will 
be provided at next meeting. 

AA Ongoing In progress 

BAC to identify which additional flights and/or aircraft meet 
Chapter 14 noise standards.  

BAC Next 
Meeting  

In progress 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of 
Bowman tabled questions for Airservices Australia (Appendix 
2) 

AA Next 
Meeting  

In progress  

BAC to locate the information on which airlines are taking the 
voluntary 7-know tailwind and provide to the Representative for 
the Federal Seat of Brisbane. 

BAC Next 
Meeting 

Completed 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Bonner 
referred to the Seante Inquiry and comments made about pilots 
applying for exemption for SID procedures as they were not 
able to meet published standards for climb gradients. The 
representative queried whether there was data on the amount 
of exemptions granted.  

AA Next 
Meeting 

Completed 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of 
Brisbane questioned why reference to the ICAO balanced 
approach towards aircraft noise was removed between the 
Green Paper and the White Paper. The representative also 
questioned whether any cost-benefit studies have been 
completed in reference to the White Paper initiatives.  

DTIRDCA Next 
Meeting 

In progress 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of 
Bowman tabled questions for Airservices Australia (Appendix 4) 

AA Next 
meeting 

Completed 

The Community Representative for the Federal Seat of Moreton 
asked whether BAC could communicate request for landing 
gear to be kept up as long as possible with the airlines.  

BAC Next 
meeting 

Completed 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1. Meeting presentation 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix 2.  

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix 3.  

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 

OFFICIAL 

 


	Agenda items
	Appendices
	Appendix 1. Meeting presentation
	Appendix 2.
	Appendix 3.


